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          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Good morning.

          3  This morning the Committee on Aging is going to

          4  conduct an oversight hearing on the Mayor's

          5  Management Report for Fiscal '99, as it relates to

          6  the operation of DFTA, the Department for the Aging.

          7                 I am happy to report that many of our

          8  City's seniors continue to benefit from DFTA

          9  programs in Fiscal '99 and hopefully will benefit

         10  from the new programs that received funding in this

         11  year's budget. NORCs, the Naturally Occurring

         12  Retirement Communities are one, however the MMR

         13  doesn't really have very much critical information

         14  necessary to enable us to determine whether DFTA is

         15  meeting the needs of the NORC project.

         16                 A substantial amount of money, $4

         17  million, was allocated for NORCs, but the MMR does

         18  not list any goals or objectives regarding NORCs,

         19  nor how it plans to divide the funds or what

         20  services the funds will provide, how many seniors or

         21  communities the money will reach.

         22                 Additionally, the MMR contains no

         23  information regarding the waiting lists for

         24  home-delivered and congregate meals, as a result it

         25  is not possible to determine the percentage of
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          2  eligible seniors who are actually served by DFTA, or

          3  who were actually served during Fiscal '99.

          4                 Another concern is the omission of

          5  goals and objectives for many of DFTA's most

          6  significant programs, including the social adult day

          7  care programs and the elder abuse and crime victim

          8  services. So, we hope that this will be informative

          9  and productive a hearing, and we are all working

         10  toward the same goal as we always have, and that is

         11  to provide services that will benefit our city's

         12  seniors.

         13                 At this point, therefore, I would

         14  like to invite our dear Commissioner, Herbert Stupp,

         15  to testify, and we will listen very intentively.

         16                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Thank you, Madam

         17  Chair, Councilman Abel, as well, good morning. I am

         18  Herbert W. Stupp, Commissioner for the New York City

         19  Department for the Aging. Thank you for inviting me

         20  here today to discuss with you the Department's

         21  section of the Mayor's Management Report, which was

         22  presented by Mayor Giuliani on September 22nd.

         23                 I should introduce the staff that is

         24  at this table and behind me.

         25                 Michael Rabin, to your right,
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          2  starting from your right in the first row. Katie

          3  Mendez, our Director of Legislation. Donna

          4  Tessitore, Assistant Commissioner, who oversees

          5  senior benefits, including SCRIE and information

          6  referral. Linda Whittaker, Assistant Commissioner,

          7  oversees Community Services, and Dan Lehman,

          8  Director of Planning, who after a short but very

          9  distinguished career in government is moving on to

         10  the private sector.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Oh, already.

         12                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: He was at OMB,

         13  and the Department for the Aging.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Commissioner,

         15  let me just interrupt to thank Donna Tessitore for

         16  the information she sent me. She was very, very

         17  helpful. I had asked for information which I

         18  received and I thank you, Donna. And it is nice to

         19  see you, Linda, again.

         20                 And let me introduce my colleague,

         21  Mike Abel, who is with me from Queens.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: The report, that

         24  is the MMR, includes coverage of the essential

         25  activities performed by the Department during Fiscal
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          2  Year 1999, and presents the Department's progress in

          3  meeting key goals and objectives for the past year.

          4                 The Mayor's Management Report serves

          5  as an important management tool for the Department

          6  in three ways. First, MMR information is used by

          7  managers on a regular basis to evaluate programs

          8  initiatives and staff performance and to formulate

          9  strategies for service improvements and new

         10  initiatives.

         11                 Second, preparation of the MMR is an

         12  exercise that strengthens accountability and

         13  reporting accuracy at all management levels and

         14  helps us focus on Department goals and performance

         15  issues.

         16                 Third, department managers use MMR

         17  information in responding to information requests

         18  from elected officials in communities and in budget

         19  analyses.

         20                 The MMR for Fiscal 1999 presents the

         21  following important information.

         22                 During Fiscal 1999, the Department

         23  for the Aging provided 1.22 million hours of home

         24  care services to 5,727 frail seniors slightly below

         25  planned levels.
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          2                 In Fiscal 1998, the Department

          3  provided the same amount of home care service to

          4  6,349 seniors, the decrease in the number of seniors

          5  receiving home care is due to the lower utilization

          6  of short-term emergency home care services, and

          7  increased hours per client in our regular home care

          8  program.

          9                 During fiscal 1999, 4,938 seniors

         10  received 39,817 hours of legal services, a one

         11  percent increase compared to the number of seniors

         12  served in Fiscal 1998.

         13                 This important service assists

         14  seniors in obtaining benefits and helps seniors

         15  threatened with evictions among other things.

         16                 In Fiscal 1999, nutrition services

         17  provided were 19,147 meals less than the total for

         18  Fiscal 1998. However, 3,334,625 home-bound meals

         19  were delivered in Fiscal 1999, an increase of seven

         20  percent, or 222,629 meals over the 3,111,996

         21  home-bound meals delivered in Fiscal 1998.

         22                 Meanwhile, congregate meals served in

         23  senior centers decreased by 2.7 percent, or 241,776

         24  meals from the Fiscal 1998 total of 9,120,774 meals

         25  to the fiscal 1999 total of 8,878,998 meals.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            8

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2                 At this hearing last year I expressed

          3  my concern about unexpectedly lower levels of

          4  nutrition service utilization.

          5                 I continue to be concerned about the

          6  performance of nutrition services indicated by these

          7  figures.

          8                 While we have successfully improved

          9  the performance of our home-delivered meal

         10  providers, consistent with increased funding and

         11  department expectations, congregate meal service

         12  continues to underperform.

         13                 We have been closely monitoring

         14  senior centers that are performing below par and

         15  have found that attendance at senior centers or at

         16  least for meals is declining more broadly than we

         17  had initially understood.

         18                 Therefore, the Department has engaged

         19  faculty from Fordham University and Ithica College

         20  to work with us to study the situation our senior

         21  centers are facing and develop recommendations for

         22  specific actions the Department and our senior

         23  center contractors can take to make our senior

         24  centers more vibrant and attractive again.

         25                 We are prepared to take what actions
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          2  are necessary, and if need be, change the focus away

          3  from congregate meals and toward other activities.

          4                 The Department received an additional

          5  $18.8 million in City funds for Fiscal 2000 for

          6  support services such as senior centers, home care,

          7  case management, home delivered meals, social adult

          8  day services, and services in Naturally Occurring

          9  Retirement Communities, or NORCs.

         10                 NORCs, residential complexes or

         11  neighborhoods which are home to a concentration of

         12  older people who moved into their residences when

         13  they were younger, have since aged.

         14                 We are now analyzing the varied

         15  service needs across the City's diverse communities

         16  and developing plans for the procurement of new

         17  service contracts where necessary.

         18                 The Department Senior Citizen Rent

         19  Increase Exemption Program, SCRIE, continued to

         20  improve performance in Fiscal '99.

         21                 The Department reduced the average

         22  processing time for completed SCRIE applications

         23  from 35 days in Fiscal 1998, to 34 days during

         24  Fiscal 1999.

         25                 Since the beginning of Fiscal 1997,
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          2  the SCRIE staff has reduced this processing time on

          3  average by 11 full days, and expects to maintain

          4  this level of performance during Fiscal 2000.

          5                 During spring 1999, DFTA distributed

          6  over 200,000 copies of its Your Guide to the Senior

          7  Citizens Rent Increase Exemption Program brochure to

          8  tenants, building owners, elected officials and

          9  community-based service organizations Citywide.

         10                 Feedback from senior citizen

         11  advocates, landlord trade associations and elected

         12  officials regarding the extensive outreach the

         13  Department conducted in support of the booklet's

         14  distribution was strongly positive and indicated an

         15  increased understanding of SCRIE.

         16                 In order to ensure that landlords

         17  receive the appropriate level of tax abatement

         18  during Fiscal 1999, the Department conducted audits

         19  of 30,281 SCRIE residential units exceeding the plan

         20  by 68.2 percent and represented a 45 percent

         21  increase from Fiscal 1998.

         22                 In June 1999, the Department began

         23  testing a new auditing process to review tax

         24  abatements electronically transmitted from the

         25  Department of Finance. We expect to implement the
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          2  new system in Fiscal 2000, thereby increasing

          3  processing efficiency and decreasing the potential

          4  for duplicative audits being performed.

          5                 As many of you are aware, the

          6  Department is developing a number of automated

          7  systems to improve operations. I am pleased to

          8  report that the Department and all of our

          9  contractors are Year 2000 Y2K compliant.

         10                 By the end of Fiscal 1999, the

         11  Department's Provider Data System, the PDS system,

         12  which automates service provider operations and

         13  manages client and employee data was expanded to a

         14  total of 320 contracted service programs meeting

         15  plan level for the fiscal year.

         16                 During Fiscal 1999, the Department

         17  released a new version of PDS software incorporating

         18  improvements and enhancements requested by the user

         19  community, such as improved client assessment care

         20  plans.

         21                 The Department plans to expand PDS to

         22  70 additional sites during Fiscal 2000.

         23                 The Department exceeded its Fiscal

         24  1999 goal by one site, by installing Uniform at 42

         25  community-based contract services programs.
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          2                 Uniform screens seniors for

          3  eligibility and facilitates the completion of

          4  applications for a range of benefit and entitlement

          5  programs.

          6                 This system will make it possible for

          7  seniors to determine what benefits and entitlements

          8  they are eligible for and apply for those benefits

          9  in a single visit to one of our agencies. The

         10  Department plans to expand the system to a total of

         11  92 sites by the end of fiscal 2000.

         12                 The most current version of Uniform

         13  allows users in contracted programs to screen

         14  seniors for eligibility for eight benefit programs.

         15                 The Department is continuing to test

         16  the new electronic document imaging module of its

         17  senior citizen referral and entitlement network, the

         18  SCREEN program, which I believe you saw, Chairwoman,

         19  on your visit to the Department.

         20                 Currently SCRIE applications and

         21  back-up documentation are moved on paper by hand

         22  from one Department employee to another.

         23                 In such a manual process there is

         24  always a danger of applications and back-up

         25  documentation becoming lost or separated.
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          2                 This new document imaging system will

          3  enable the SCRIE mailroom to scan applications and

          4  back-up documentation directly into the SCREEN

          5  system where they can be retrieved by SCRIE staff.

          6  SCRIE staff can view the documents on line, process

          7  the application and store them in the clients'

          8  electronic folder. During fiscal 2000, the

          9  Department will upgrade SCREEN image recognition

         10  software and the associated hardware systems and

         11  develop a long-term electronic storage capacity for

         12  the system.

         13                 The Department expects to begin a

         14  pilot implementation of the image recognition module

         15  by the end of Fiscal 2000.

         16                 Not all of our new initiatives are

         17  automation projects. Many of the Department's

         18  initiatives are designed to develop new services to

         19  meet the emerging needs of the elderly or improve

         20  services by changing the way they are provided.

         21                 In this role the Department conducts

         22  and supports original research.

         23                 Beginning in Fiscal 1999, in

         24  conjunction with a major New York Hospital and a

         25  leading academic research center, the Department
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          2  received a federal research and demonstration grant

          3  to develop the care-givers assistance demonstration

          4  program.

          5                 From October 1998, through February

          6  2000, the project planned to serve 80 clients by

          7  providing care-giver respite, care-giver home

          8  training and adaptive equipment. As of June 1999,

          9  the project had already served 100 clients. And we

         10  should mention most of the grant goes to Rockefeller

         11  University and NYU and it does relate to some

         12  medical research as well.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Is that a

         14  hospital with which you are working?

         15                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Rockefeller, yes.

         16                 Other new initiatives undertaken by

         17  the Department during Fiscal 1999 included the

         18  following: Using a 28,000 one-time start-up grant

         19  provided by the State Office of the Aging, the

         20  Department implemented a training program targeted

         21  at seniors who have high levels of education and

         22  work experience but who become unemployed as a

         23  result of downsizing industry relocation,

         24  organizational restructuring or obsolescence of

         25  skills.
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          2                 Participants receive training in

          3  modern office technology and assistance with job

          4  hunting and personal networking.

          5                 The Department provides services to

          6  74 participants and has placed 45 of the

          7  participants in jobs to date. This is a 61 percent

          8  placement rate, which is considered very good for a

          9  senior employment program.

         10                 We will use City funding to continue

         11  this program in Fiscal 2000.

         12                 During Fiscal 1999, the Department

         13  enhanced its Personal Care Aid, the PCA training

         14  program, by adding two employment counselors

         15  contracted through the Human Resources

         16  Administration who will help locate jobs or advanced

         17  education for participants who complete PCA.

         18                 This initiative located jobs for 49

         19  of 51 eligible graduates from the Fall 1998 and

         20  Spring 1999 PCA training sessions. All fall 1998

         21  graduates placed in home care agencies worked for at

         22  least the required 90-day follow-up period and all

         23  spring 1999 graduates have retained their jobs as of

         24  the end of Fiscal 1999.

         25                 During Fiscal 2000, the Department
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          2  plans to place 75 PCA graduates with home care

          3  agencies.

          4                 Using a grant it received in November

          5  1998 from the State Office for the Aging, the

          6  Department conducted elder abuse prevention training

          7  sessions at 30 sites, including senior centers, New

          8  York City Housing Authority locations and one

          9  hospital during February and March 1999.

         10                 Covering topics such as the risk

         11  factors for elder abuse, the procedures for

         12  obtaining legal orders of protection and the

         13  benefits and potential dangers of joint bank

         14  accounts, the training sessions reached more than

         15  1,000 seniors exceeding the plan of 600

         16  participants.

         17                 Each participant received a copy of

         18  Taking Care of Business protecting yourself and your

         19  assets, which will be distributed to other seniors

         20  through DFTA's network of senior centers and

         21  contracted service providers during and throughout

         22  Fiscal 2000.

         23                 As longevity keeps increasing the

         24  challenges facing older New Yorkers grow with each

         25  year. The Department is committed to ensuring that
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          2  services for seniors are provided in a manner that

          3  is compassionate, efficient and effective, promoting

          4  independence and enhancing their quality of life.

          5                 The Department for the Aging has been

          6  grateful for the strong support of Mayor Giuliani

          7  and this Council in the past and we look forward to

          8  working with Chairwoman Harrison and this Committee

          9  in continuing to address the needs of older New

         10  Yorkers in the coming years.

         11                 And just referring to some of your

         12  comments in your initial statement, just so we can

         13  put you at some ease, I think. One reason there is

         14  no more MMR data on the NORC programs is that the

         15  funding only began with this fiscal year, so we will

         16  be RFP'g that very shortly.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Well, can I get

         18  any suggested time frame as to when the RFPs will be

         19  going out, and when you think perhaps the

         20  acceptances will be made, the decisions will be made

         21  and when the money will be put to use? Will we be

         22  using that money, will we be --

         23                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It will be in the

         24  first part of 2000, which isn't that specific, but

         25  it has to go over to MOC.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: I am

          3  Michael Rabin. That would mean that in spring the

          4  money will be out there in the community --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Money? Or what

          6  is the process --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: Through

          8  the RFPs --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: No, what time

         10  does the process take that causes you to review all

         11  of the RFPs you receive and make your decisions?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: Right. The

         13  RFPs will be released probably some time next month.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: In November,

         15  right.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: Over a

         17  course of a few months thereafter --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Which will

         19  bring it to what, April? March?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: We

         21  are hoping to get start-up funds in April.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: So the money

         23  should start flowing through to your accepted NORCs

         24  by April?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: Yes,
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          2  that's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Now, will we

          4  lose any of the money that had been allocated for

          5  the current year or will it all have been used?

          6  Given the fact that brand new organizations are

          7  starting up?

          8                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We can, just as

          9  we did with some of the social adult day care money

         10  that came in the middle of the year, we can permit

         11  some one-time costs, enable them to start up, get

         12  them to purchase things that they will need.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Like capital

         14  items, furniture or whatever?

         15                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: So that will be

         17  an exception for the following rules, for the rules

         18  that will follow after the initial installation.

         19                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes, that's

         20  right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Okay, you were

         22  saying? I am sorry.

         23                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: One other issue

         24  you mentioned is a waitlist for home-delivered

         25  meals. That is always a moving target, and our
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          2  general view is that there is not a substantial

          3  waitlist anywhere in the City. When someone calls a

          4  case management agency, they don't get meals the

          5  next day, they get an assessment within two weeks

          6  often within a week and it is determined whether or

          7  not someone is eligible or whether or not they have

          8  family supports, whether they really are home-bound,

          9  that sort of thing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Can you

         11  describe in any detail at all, are you familiar with

         12  what the contents of what the home-delivered meals

         13  is? What the contents are of home-delivered meals?

         14                 You know, when I was in need a couple

         15  of years ago, about three years, two years, I was

         16  getting home-delivered meals because I couldn't

         17  handle it myself. One of the meals was really

         18  ghastly, I mean it was repulsive, if you want to

         19  know the truth, and I am just curious to know what

         20  the content of the normal meals service is,

         21  includes?

         22                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It does vary from

         23  contractor to contractor. You know, the best example

         24  might be Asian communities or culture programs will

         25  be really targeted for them.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Ethnic foods.

          3                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: So it will vary

          4  from neighborhood to neighborhood but it is all

          5  monitored by our nutritionists which have to certify

          6  that it at least meets one-third of the USDA

          7  requirements.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: You should also

          9  make them certify that they are going to eat their

         10  food.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: I would

         12  add, Madam Chair, that in a situation like that, if

         13  it is reported to us we will address the issue.

         14                 As an example, somebody who knew me

         15  gave a call a few months ago about a friend of his

         16  who was receiving home-delivered meals and she said

         17  while they had been good for a long period of time,

         18  all of a sudden they became very bad. When he called

         19  me we sent our nutritionist out there and what

         20  turned out was that the cook who had been preparing

         21  it for many years had retired, the new cook was

         22  horrendous. We got that straightened out very, very

         23  quickly, so if you could tell us where the meals

         24  came from.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: It is a little

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  too late to report the incident now. I wouldn't

          3  dare.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: We try to

          5  assure quality control and if we hear from the

          6  community that anything is bad, we immediately try

          7  to get it back to being good.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Now, which

          9  member of your organization receives those kinds of

         10  complaints?

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Assistant

         12  Commissioner Linda Whittaker. It is probably that

         13  same cook who keeps moving around and gets fired.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: That very well

         15  could be.

         16                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: And then on elder

         17  abuse goals, we didn't include that we could

         18  probably come up with some to submit to you, but as

         19  far as the number of people we serve, that is folks

         20  who come in for contacts, counseling sessions,

         21  whatever, it keeps growing and expanding.

         22                 It is very hard to gauge whether

         23  elder abuse itself is increasing, especially in a

         24  climate where crime generally is decreasing, but

         25  clearly awareness of elder abuse is increasing, we
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          2  found --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON:  Left me ask

          4  you a question, Commissioner.

          5                 We have had much contact with Father

          6  Coleman Costello, who is also interested and very

          7  concerned about the problem of elder abuse, and I am

          8  just curious to know, do you have any kind of

          9  connection with him? Do you work with him in any

         10  degree at all?

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Sure.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: And how, if you

         13  do?

         14                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Actually, there

         15  are some referrals that go back and forth between

         16  the two agencies, because sometimes people will call

         17  him because they have heard of him, and sometimes

         18  they will call us because they are aware of us for

         19  some reason, and if something is right in his back

         20  yard, we will make a referral back to them.

         21                 If that is correct? Donna, you can

         22  correct me any time on this.

         23                 Certainly the funds that we got from

         24  the Council we were putting out to Father Costello

         25  toward the construction of his elderly shelter,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            24

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  which will be the first one, it will be near the

          3  Brooklyn/Queens border, so we work closely with him

          4  on that and he is a contractor of ours and I did

          5  attend and spoke, he has been there along with

          6  Claire Shulman -- rather the luncheon last Friday,

          7  so we had contact that recently.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Okay, thank

          9  you.

         10                 Did I interrupt your flow of thought

         11  before?

         12                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: No.

         13                 Donna, do you want to add anything

         14  about the caseload increase?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Donna, take the

         16  mic, honey. And identify yourself, please.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         18  Donna Tessitore.

         19                 One of the things that the

         20  Commissioner mentioned that we were very pleased to

         21  do last year was elder abuse prevention seminars out

         22  in the community, and in conjunction with that we

         23  did put together a book, which the Commissioner also

         24  mentioned, and that we are distributing.

         25                 We are looking for some funding now
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          2  to do some additional community presentations. We

          3  think they went really well and, you know, we got

          4  good feedback from the thousand or so seniors who

          5  participated.

          6                 So, that is a new area for us. We

          7  have already done training to EMS and Fire

          8  Department, they are the same now, police at the

          9  Police Academy, to hospitals, and so on about

         10  identifying elder abuse.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Did your staff

         12  increase noticeably with all of the additional work

         13  you are turning out?

         14                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We have gotten

         15  some additional funding from State Crime Victims

         16  Board for one additional staff person at this point.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Because I am

         18  really impressed by the numbers of publications that

         19  I saw at the Queens outreach hearing that you held,

         20  and from the reports, you know, you are involved in

         21  a very diverse area of activity and I am just

         22  wondering whether or not it occasions the need for

         23  more manpower than what you may have currently, and

         24  if you do need more, don't be bashful about speaking

         25  up, let us know.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Okay, thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Before I

          4  continue with my own questions, I want to introduce

          5  the fact that Una Clarke, Karen Koslowitz and Mike

          6  Nelson have joined us an I thank you all. And look

          7  through the questions that you may want to decide to

          8  check with the Commissioner.

          9                 But I have a couple of questions that

         10  I would like to ask more.

         11                 Can you discuss in any greater detail

         12  the comments you made about having reached out to

         13  Fordham and Ithica College to annalyze I guess the

         14  content of your senior programs and the actions you

         15  may be considering to make them a little bit more

         16  lively?

         17                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes. We brought

         18  in a few gerontologists. John Krout from Ithica

         19  College. Professor Krout, who speaks around the

         20  country at the national forums like the National

         21  Association of Agencies on Aging, the National

         22  Gerontological Association, so he is looking at it,

         23  Pat Brownell, who must be a protege of Marge

         24  Cantrone, yes. I just mention them because you may

         25  be more familiar with them.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: No, I am not

          3  really.

          4                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Both of them are

          5  going and interviewing some of the directors, some

          6  of the participants, so we wanted to get --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Do they do

          8  on-site investigation of their own and not just

          9  simply take the words of the leadership?

         10                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That is why we

         11  wanted them because we do have an oversight function

         12  obviously with our contractors, so they may be

         13  defensive about certain things and we thought we

         14  would get as independent a response as possible from

         15  participants and people who are running these

         16  programs to tell us why.

         17                 My understanding is there has been

         18  some declines in other parts of the country, but I

         19  can't rattle off --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Declines of?

         21                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Of incongregate

         22  meal participation. But home-delivered meal requests

         23  are up.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Well, that's

         25  common.
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          2                 Okay. So, the RFPs we had discussed,

          3  and they are going out in November, for the NORCs,

          4  okay. Your Guide To Senior Citizen Rent Increase

          5  Exemption Program, I would like to place an order

          6  for my own office, if you will be kind enough to

          7  send me a stash?

          8                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I think we sent

          9  them. Each Council office got 200. But we would be

         10  glad to send more.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I don't

         12  remember having seen that one, and if my colleagues

         13  have not received it, just doublecheck, okay?

         14                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Sure.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I know I

         16  haven't gotten any and I would like to get some

         17  more.

         18                 I do want to thank you about Taking

         19  Care of Business. I will tell you that I announced

         20  it in my newsletter and the phone hasn't stopped

         21  ringing, where you had sent us the barrel scraping

         22  that you had had in the office before the new

         23  delivery came in, we have gotten rid of them -- we

         24  didn't get rid of them, we mailed them to request in

         25  person, and they went out very well and they are
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          2  very helpful and I thank you for having done that.

          3                 I would like to have you discuss a

          4  little bit more this question of PDS and the program

          5  itself, the Department's provider data system. Would

          6  you tell me a little bit more about that? You do

          7  what with that program, besides the fact that you

          8  are expanded to 320 contracted programs?

          9                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That enables each

         10  of our case management agencies, and each case

         11  management --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Is that the one

         13  that takes all of the information and does it all

         14  electronically?

         15                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes. Although it

         16  is not the one that screens a senior individually

         17  for benefits. It is to help the case manager really

         18  collate and manage all the information they get

         19  about particular clients, and has reminders an bells

         20  and whistles to go back and do a reassessment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Now, let me

         22  interrupt you.

         23                 I think we have heard of a need for

         24  the kinds of workers you are describing, the case

         25  manager assistants, for many of the centers that
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          2  people have been asking for as additional help,

          3  because the directors find themselves burdened with

          4  assuming tasks for which they are not necessarily

          5  equipped or they cannot give appropriate time?

          6                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I think what I

          7  have heard, from what other people have touched

          8  upon, some of the advocates, they were hoping for

          9  some of the large senior centers to have a social

         10  worker that would directly with seniors.

         11                 This is something we actually have

         12  increased with the additional funds we have gotten.

         13  We have added case managers which are a key link in

         14  getting people into services like home delivered

         15  meals, because that is the access point of the

         16  people that go out and do the assessments.

         17                 And also, we did add, I think was it

         18  25 last year or something like that? About 25 last

         19  year, so that most case management agencies then got

         20  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: So you have the

         22  PDS in 70 additional sites, right? Is that correct?

         23                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes, and senior

         24  centers as well. And also we should point out,

         25  although the resources are mostly New York City
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          2  resources, there was some cooperation with the State

          3  Office for the Aging, so some of the other counties

          4  around New York State are using this.

          5                 And also when you compare this with

          6  some of the other states around the country, they

          7  are buying into private systems that have ongoing

          8  costs and aren't nearly as sophisticated as this. So

          9  there was major effort by some of these private

         10  software forms to penetrate New York. They have a

         11  few takers, interestingly in rural counties that you

         12  think could afford this, but basically because of

         13  the strength of PDS, the public sector involvement

         14  we have made in it has made it, it is still an

         15  evolving system, but people understand its value and

         16  are using it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I would like to

         18  call on Council Member Abel at this point. I think

         19  he has a question. And if my colleagues have

         20  questions? Madam Clarke will have the next one.

         21                 Mike.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Okay, thank you.

         23                 Actually, I am delighted that you

         24  brought up the question about Fordham, because being

         25  a Fordham grad it stuck out in my mind.
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          2                 Were you going after a specific

          3  person, or were you going to these schools because

          4  they were good?

          5                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I think it is the

          6  person more, somebody who is noted and has

          7  credibility.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: That would be on

          9  that faculty?

         10                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes.

         11                 (Speaking to his staff) is that the

         12  Fordham faculty of -- School of Social Work? Yes.

         13                 No, but I mean the particular unit. I

         14  mean, John Krout is a gerontologist.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: But you were

         16  looking for that specific person and they just

         17  happen to be at Ithica or Fordham.

         18                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes. And also

         19  there are a lot of schools of social work that don't

         20  necessarily have experts in gerontology, so there is

         21  social work, they may be good in many other areas,

         22  but they don't have a gerontologist on staff.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Okay. Also,

         24  according to the MMR, there was a one percent

         25  increase in SCRIE applications.
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          2                 Two questions: Do we know how we got

          3  that one percent increase?

          4                 I mean, do we have one percent more

          5  seniors or are we doing a better out reach?

          6                 And the second question: Have you got

          7  anything in the works to do an even better outreach?

          8                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Donna might

          9  comment.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: I

         11  don't think we can tell you specifically where the

         12  one percent came from, but I can tell you the thing

         13  that occurred in terms of outreach.

         14                 As you know, we did the book and we

         15  sent it to all of the usual places including the

         16  Council offices and so on.

         17                 We also, the Department for the Aging

         18  placed a notice in Brooklyn Union Gas and Con Ed

         19  flyers. When the Mayor announced the book we have

         20  covered by channels I think five and seven, don't

         21  hold me to the numbers --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Had that ever

         23  happened in the past?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: No.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Because I
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          2  remember last year when we had the same hearing on

          3  the MMR, we were talking about new plans and this

          4  was part of it.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: So,

          6  we had TV coverage. I think it was Con Ed not only

          7  sent it to their senior, placed the ad in their

          8  senior newsletter, but they actually placed it in

          9  the general public flyer that they include with your

         10  bill. So, it went to 3 million people in the New

         11  York area.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Are you planning

         13  on doing any sort of a follow-up to find up what is

         14  working or what is not, or maybe it is a combination

         15  of everything? You know, asking people whether they

         16  heard about SCRIE, I suppose?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         18  Actually we haven't done that. That is something we

         19  can do. One of the things that we were a little

         20  disturbed about is that we are still having people

         21  submit incomplete applications, and I should also

         22  say that anyone who now inquires about SCRIE gets a

         23  book with the application, and we have decreased the

         24  amount of stuff you have to attach. You only have to

         25  attach your lease and proof of income, that's it.
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          2                 And I think you may have seen a more

          3  recent application. They are bigger print, more

          4  streamlined.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Generally if

          6  someone comes into our office and asks for the

          7  application, or has the application, we will sit

          8  down and try and help them fill it out.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         10  Right.

         11                 So we have tried to make it more

         12  user-friendly in a lot of ways.

         13                 We had talked yesterday about doing a

         14  little sample of the people who in fact aren't

         15  filling things out correctly, aren't attaching

         16  things correctly to find out where the problem is,

         17  if there is something else that we can do to be

         18  clearer.

         19                 We haven't talked about, you know,

         20  asking people where they found out about it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Without being

         22  overburdensome on the agency, I think it would be a

         23  good idea --

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         25  Yes. We won't do hundreds but I think we can do a
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          2  sample.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Just to get a

          4  sample to see what works.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

          6  That would be a great idea.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: And to follow up

          8  on that, is there anything that you have planned to

          9  do outreach this upcoming year that you didn't do

         10  last year? Something new and exciting and different?

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: One thing we hope

         12  to do is put the SCRIE application for initial

         13  applications on our web site, which could even be of

         14  some help to a counsel or their legislative office.

         15  You know, if somebody has run out of a supply and

         16  they have called up on a Thursday afternoon for a

         17  supply from us, even if we are top efficiency we are

         18  not going to get it until next week. But the next

         19  morning somebody could download it from the

         20  Internet, you know, on a blank piece of paper and

         21  fill it out that way.

         22                 But, Donna, you want to make sure

         23  that is just initial because we need to have the

         24  renewals --

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: The
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          2  renewals have some preprinted information, you know,

          3  they are tracked a certain way internally, and

          4  unfortunately when we get duplicate applications for

          5  people, which is usually during the renewal process

          6  it, rather than speeds things up, slows things down,

          7  so we would rather just keep the initials out there.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Do you do any

          9  work with -- what do they call it -- the Ad Council?

         10  I mean, this is obviously a public service that we

         11  are doing over here and a lot of times either radio

         12  stations or TV stations, or just advertising in

         13  general donate; have we explored that route to get

         14  --

         15                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: There are pretty

         16  long waiting lists, holding patterns to get into.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Oh, no doubt.

         18                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: And now a lot of

         19  TV and radio stations charge for the production, so

         20  we are looking at some other way. I have explored

         21  university connections that I have had, you know, TV

         22  and radio departments may be producing something for

         23  us, and we have explored it. We don't have a magic

         24  bullet but maybe it will come down to us --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: How about using
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          2  QPTV? They seem to have a need for, or they have a

          3  use for --

          4                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We actually did

          5  use them last year. We had a number of tapings

          6  related to our program so we had the then director

          7  of SCRIE, Judy Johnson, out there and I guess in

          8  your district there in Kissena Boulevard. I was

          9  there, other Assistant Commissioners were there.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: The

         11  community newspapers also picked up the SCRIE book

         12  and almost all of them ran that as well.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: You can do it as

         14  a press release.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         16  Right.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Or I was just

         18  going to say WFUV, Fordham University Radio. And

         19  they have -- actually that station is multi-ethnic,

         20  to the extent that almost every few hours they are

         21  doing different groups, along with the sports and

         22  whatnot. You get a big range over there and you have

         23  got the Fordham book already so that is something.

         24                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That is a good

         25  idea.
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          2                 I spoke, I have been interviewed on

          3  WFUV, but not on SCRIE.

          4                 Another idea, just to show we listen

          5  at these community hearings we have on our annual

          6  plan, we have in each borough, this afternoon we

          7  will be in the Bronx, we have done -- actually that

          8  is our last borough -- but a good idea came from the

          9  Queens hearing. We still might have to check to see

         10  if there are any legal implications and make sure

         11  our Deputy Commissioner and General Counsel is

         12  comfortable with this too, but one suggestion was

         13  that we make 16 benefits, which include SCRIE,

         14  available to all, or as many of the ethnic papers as

         15  possible.

         16                 At the suggestion of Councilwoman

         17  Koslowitz we had that reprinted into Russian. I

         18  think when I first got here we only had Spanish and

         19  English, and now we have got Chinese, Russian,

         20  Korean, Haitian, Creole.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I can use some

         22  Korean and I can use some Chinese and I can use some

         23  Russian.

         24                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Among others.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2  You already have it in Spanish, right?

          3                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That's right.

          4                 So, if we could get that out and

          5  offer it to the different ethnic groups. At the

          6  Queens hearing somebody from the Romanian community

          7  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: I was just going

          9  to bring that up. It seems, in my neighborhood,

         10  believe it or not, there seems to be an influx of

         11  Romanians coming in now. I was just going to mention

         12  that, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: They must be

         14  displaced persons from Romania.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: They heard I was

         16  here.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Part of the

         18  ethnic cleansing program we have ongoing.

         19                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: The one issue

         20  that would remain there would be quality control.

         21  That is, if you had one person translating, who is

         22  in a rush and they get the number wrong, they said

         23  you are qualified if you went up to $60,000 or

         24  something, we don't want to be liable for that and

         25  then you folks, might even get complaints about us
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          2  because of that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Oh, Heaven

          4  forbid.

          5                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: So we will have a

          6  discussion internally about that, but I thought at

          7  least it was a good idea.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I would like to

          9  introduce Council Member Lasher from Brooklyn who

         10  has joined us and call on Council Member Clarke.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Commissioner, you know my trend of

         14  questioning always come from the same direction. And

         15  I recognize that throughout the City there are many

         16  benefits being lost, especially to resident alien

         17  immigrant communities, and I just want to know what

         18  the impact is on your Department, number one, and if

         19  there is a fall-off, how are you addressing that

         20  since a lot of seniors may not be eligible for many

         21  benefits that would flow through you. And I

         22  recognize further that there is a program that the

         23  City has through DYCD that is getting the elderly

         24  and the handicapped become citizens, although there

         25  is a backlog, and how is the interface with that,
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          2  since a natural consistency would be at senior

          3  workers for those workers to come to sign up people

          4  and to make sure that their benefits are restored;

          5  is there a collaboration going on? And can I be

          6  helpful?

          7                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: There is a

          8  collaboration going on with the DYCD program.

          9                 We also have our own refugee program

         10  that we have concentrated now on the basis of the

         11  first year's experience, mostly in Brooklyn.

         12                 So, that is, we are serving above the

         13  plan, as far as the number of people we are serving.

         14                 As far as the impact on other senior

         15  immigrants losing their benefits. That of course is

         16  a relatively silent community. Those are people who,

         17  in many cases when they are turned away seek other

         18  informal supports very locally, so we don't always

         19  hear about them.

         20                 Now, those folks are always welcome

         21  at our senior centers where there is no means

         22  testing, there is no citizenship test or anything

         23  like that at our senior centers, so our hope would

         24  be that some of those folks are taking advantage of

         25  those services, and based on my previous testimony
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          2  we would certainly welcome them, we do have some

          3  capacity there as well.

          4                 Does anybody want to add to what I

          5  said?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: The one

          7  benefit that is associated with the Department if

          8  there is a problem is the HEAP benefit, the Home

          9  Energy Assistance Program, which we have been

         10  directed by the federal government is only available

         11  to citizens and resident aliens.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: And is it still

         13  funded?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: It is

         15  still funded, however I know there was additional

         16  scrutiny required by the federal government.

         17                 Perhaps Donna can tell a little bit

         18  about that, as she comes back to the table.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: We

         20  were able to give SCRIE benefit this year -- or

         21  HEAP, I am sorry. We were able to give HEAP benefit

         22  this year to people regardless of their citizenship

         23  status. Although for the first time this year they

         24  had to complete a federal form indicating the

         25  citizenship status of themselves and all of their
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          2  household members.

          3                 We were told that anyone who was not

          4  a citizen and had completed the form that way needed

          5  to supply us with documentation that they were in an

          6  approved alternate category. And there were only

          7  about 600 HEAP beneficiaries this year who we had to

          8  ask for documentation.

          9                 What we did is sent a letter to them

         10  with a package indicating where they could go for

         11  help with obtaining documents on the DYCD groups

         12  that you mentioned, and we did community document

         13  assessments in each of the boroughs.

         14                 We had only about 200 some odd people

         15  who came in to show us their documents.

         16                 The balance, in order for them to be

         17  eligible for HEAP next year, we are going to have to

         18  see their documents, or we are going to have to deny

         19  them benefits. And that is a federal issue.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Is there

         21  someone in the Department who can take a close look

         22  at the 1996 immigration reform act?

         23                 Because for the refugee, those with

         24  refugee status, there is no order of deportation

         25  that they will get, there is no order for them not
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          2  to do certain things because they are to stay, for

          3  all intents and purpose, and so all they need is the

          4  nurturance into taking care of the benefits.  For

          5  immigrants who come with a Visa, it is a whole

          6  different story under that act. And I think that

          7  there is a lot of concentration on the refugee

          8  population and very little on the immigrant who

          9  comes either with a greencard, I am not talking

         10  undocumented now, I am talking those persons who are

         11  going to take them five years and then they apply,

         12  after the fifth year, probably wait three more years

         13  before they can become a citizen, so they would have

         14  been invited to be residents of this country, and

         15  for eight years could not receive any benefit. And I

         16  am just trying to figure out how, for these

         17  families, we do something that either the federal

         18  government will understand that the City is losing a

         19  lot of money, or we need to come up with a different

         20  format when we serve that population.

         21                 It is even more disconcerting when

         22  somebody comes as a senior. When I came, you know, I

         23  could swim or sink. For a senior it is sink, rather

         24  than being able to swim at all. And so I think many

         25  of those are isolated, and I can talk very much for
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          2  the Haitian community that I represent where

          3  language is a barrier and where they are not used to

          4  telling their business to anyone, so I find that in

          5  my office on a daily basis. We have to address

          6  issues of you are not going to be able to get it,

          7  you have nobody else to give it to you, and even the

          8  food programs that are out there, many of them can't

          9  take advantage of it, so it gets to be real

         10  difficult.

         11                 And that leads me to the question

         12  that I wanted to ask you that is in your report as

         13  to the way you use the management report as a

         14  management tool for improvement of service and for

         15  new initiatives. How do you do that? Can you

         16  describe for us how that gives you the insight of

         17  what new initiative needs to be there and how you

         18  evaluate the programs and the service?

         19                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Well, first I

         20  should mention that the PDS system that we talked

         21  about before, has the ability to assimilate and

         22  collate a lot more data, including citizenship

         23  status so that we can try to get services to, not

         24  just individuals but communities, because it will

         25  tell us how we are doing across the whole City and
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          2  serving people and when different populations come

          3  up, you know, I think there is a sector in the PDS

          4  question about language that you speak and the like.

          5                 We are an agency that considers

          6  themselves a quality management agency, and part of

          7  quality management is always benchmarking and using

          8  data so that we can build on our successes and have

          9  something objective to go by as we look to the

         10  future. So, we constantly use data, a lot of

         11  internal data, and some of the folks here set goals

         12  for themselves and we go over them and part of my

         13  job is to get them the resources and whatever else

         14  they need to achieve some of their own goals. These

         15  folks are very, very creative.

         16                 So, we are constantly using data and

         17  benchmarks to see where we are and what else needs

         18  to be done, and that is what led us to bringing this

         19  independent source to look at, why one area is

         20  troubling us, the congregate meal number.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, thank

         22  you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: One question I

         24  would like to interpose before I call on my

         25  colleagues again.
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          2                 At the Queens hearing, speaker after

          3  speaker stressed the need, the great need, for

          4  housing, affordable housing for seniors, and I am

          5  very curious to know whether you have given it, as a

          6  specific item, any attention? Do you have any plans

          7  at all for calling on the City to develop any

          8  housing? Is there anything in the wash now that I

          9  should know about, I would like to know about, we

         10  would all like to know about?

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: There was the $8

         12  million the Council appropriated in this year's

         13  budget, and then I guess four was directed at

         14  specific programs and then four was given to HPD,

         15  but they are working closely with us on developing

         16  an affordable assisted living program.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Well, are they

         18  going to spend that $4 million on people in the

         19  office who are going to draw plans or make proposals

         20  or draw diagrams, or are they going to use it to do

         21  actual work?

         22                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It is capital

         23  money, as Deputy Commissioner Rabin points out.

         24                 We are assessing whether or not we

         25  can make something work for that amount of money, or
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          2  what we could make work for that amount of money.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Because it is

          4  really a dire problem. And I have been getting calls

          5  in the office.

          6                 You know, I have a lot of private

          7  homes in my community, a lot of them have had

          8  illegal occupants in the buildings that they live in

          9  and they are now being caught up by the Building

         10  Department and the illegal housing units are being

         11  vacated and these people have no place to go, and

         12  the rents are absolutely out of this world, and I

         13  don't know how anybody pays $2,000 a month rent for

         14  a stinking apartment. So, the question is very

         15  serious.

         16                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It is, yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: And I would

         18  urge that you give it some push.

         19                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We have given it

         20  a lot of thought, and Donna, who is our most popular

         21  witness here today, but she oversees. Actually,

         22  Donna spent some years at HPD, and oversees a

         23  housing unit. Of course, we are not a housing

         24  agency.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I understand
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          2  that.

          3                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: But housing unit

          4  is kind of a clearing house we put out information

          5  on what is out there.

          6                 A couple thoughts here. First, even

          7  though it is not for modest income folks, it is I

          8  think a good sign that there is 15 developments

          9  underway in this City.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Where?

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Around the City,

         12  there are a couple that have opened in Queens.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Who is

         14  sponsoring them?

         15                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Places like

         16  Senior Quarters, or Castle Senior Living. These are

         17  not, again, for modest income folks, these are

         18  relatively expensive units.

         19                 Although one thing I would point out,

         20  for someone who gets offput by hearing well it is

         21  $2,800 or $3,000 a month, and somebody just can't

         22  come close to that, even though it does include your

         23  meals and some medical and social support.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Oh, you are

         25  talking now about assisted living?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes, those

          3  for-profit. But in some of those locations if you

          4  share, that is you would have your own private

          5  bedroom, but you would be sharing an apartment, just

          6  like some people do in their twenties, the cost in

          7  one place in Queens drops to $1,600 a month, so when

          8  you consider including meals and all of that, if

          9  somebody has just some income, in addition to Social

         10  Security, they might be able to make that work.

         11                 Of course that is still not an answer

         12  for your lower income and modest income folks.

         13                 There are some folks who want to

         14  develop some public lands, I know Seaview Hospital

         15  in Staten Island is trying to come up with a plan,

         16  and the Borough President, I know they are behind

         17  it. There is an environmental issue there. The

         18  Borough President in Queens would like to use part

         19  of the Queens Hospital Campus or at least is open to

         20  it and is entertaining discussion about doing

         21  something there, and I heard from a developer

         22  yesterday who is interested in doing something for

         23  modest income, moderate income folks. And we hope to

         24  be meeting --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: So, it is on
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          2  your agenda, and you are briefly aware of it?

          3                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Sure, we

          4  certainly are.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Okay.

          6                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I guess it

          7  doesn't really need to be said, but although New

          8  York is sort of behind the curve on housing for

          9  seniors, and I think part of it just historically is

         10  the cost of land here relative to places like the

         11  middle of nowhere in Florida or the Jersey shore or

         12  whatever, but what we do lead the country in, and

         13  this doesn't mean that we should just sit around and

         14  be satisfied for two weeks or something, but what we

         15  do lead the country in is in-home support. You know,

         16  home-delivered meals, home care, other things that

         17  are intended to keep people in the homes they do

         18  have now. You know, I think this Committee can

         19  certainly take some pride in it, as we as the

         20  Department take some pride in it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: All right, I

         22  would like to call Council Member Nelson.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Good morning,

         24  Commissioner, Deputies, nice to see you.

         25                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Good morning.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I first would

          3  like to say that I have always had tremendous

          4  cooperation from your agency and I appreciate that.

          5  And my constituents will let me know if there are

          6  individual problems in my senior centers easily, and

          7  they have not actually as far as anything you could

          8  correct at the moment.

          9                 This is not your jurisdiction, but

         10  the SCRIE level, do you see the need to raise the

         11  threshold, from what you have seen and dealt with in

         12  your facts and figures from the present 20,000?

         13                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Donna, are you

         14  getting -- we do see folks who -- I mean, whatever

         15  threshold is defined, within a month we get somebody

         16  who will write to one of you saying can't something

         17  be done, my income is -- I just saw one last month,

         18  somebody's income was $20,600, so they don't

         19  qualify. They may in the future, you know, because

         20  maybe part of that is interest, maybe interest rates

         21  will change or whatever and you won't get that $600

         22  in income.

         23                 I think looking out over the next ten

         24  or 20 years there will need to be adjustments of

         25  some kind in the threshold. I am not saying that is
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          2  the one adjustment. But certainly, especially if

          3  inflation picks up, there will be needs to be

          4  adjustments done.

          5                 Donna, do you want to comment at all

          6  on anything you are hearing or do you spot a number

          7  of folks just over 20,000, that is unusual compared

          8  to say three years ago when the law was changed?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: No

         10  significant numbers at any apparent higher cutoff,

         11  but there certainly, as the Commissioner said, would

         12  always be some folks who are over the 20 who are

         13  interested in the program and who would want to

         14  apply so --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It's true, if

         16  you get to 22,000, there will be people making

         17  22,001 or something, and there is always a problem

         18  with that. But it is just my feeling that it is kind

         19  of low now in this day and age. Even though the

         20  placement has been low, 20,000 isn't a heck of a lot

         21  of money for some of these people.

         22                 But that was not only the main thrust

         23  at the moment. You dedicated a significant amount of

         24  funding to a new program that will give help towards

         25  NORCs overall. How many seniors or communities does
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          2  DFTA target to service in this?

          3                 I am sorry, specifically what kind of

          4  services will the funds be used for?

          5                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That RFP is at

          6  MOC and so we will be hearing from them on approval

          7  or any fine-tuning they want to do with that.

          8                 Certainly there will be social work

          9  staff available, there will be some limited or

         10  occasional nursing staff, and also there will be

         11  flexibility for people to apply to us and say what

         12  they want to do with the funds based on the needs

         13  that they perceive in a community. And it will

         14  depend on somebody, on some creative partnerships.

         15  One agency, a housing agency may apply and they may

         16  already have a partnership built in with a local

         17  clinic or something, you know, it will vary, and

         18  then the next agency won't have that resource so

         19  they will want to use some of the City funds to say

         20  have a nurse available, whatever, one day a week or

         21  something like that.

         22                 Donna, anything you want to add once

         23  again? You might as well stay here.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I want to ask

         25  questions before Donna has to take the table again.
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          2  My question is, have you in your RFP stipulated any

          3  particular sum of money that would be available to

          4  the applicant, should that applicant be accepted?

          5                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It's a ceiling,

          6  right?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: A ceiling which

          8  would indicate then --

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: The

         10  ceiling is 200,000.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Holy moley.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: And I

         13  forget honestly what we said is the floor.

         14  Seventy-five thousand is the floor.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: The floor?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: But

         17  that is for new applicants, okay? There is a

         18  different route that the existing state funded NORCs

         19  will go from a procurement perspective to get

         20  additional funding from us to support supplemental

         21  needs and they --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I wonder could

         23  --

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:--

         25  Will have that $75,000 floor.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I wonder, could

          3  you send the Committee a sample of the application

          4  that you are RFP'g?

          5                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: The RFP itself,

          6  sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Yes, the RFP. I

          8  would like to see what it has to say.

          9                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: If you would

         11  send it the Committee I think would be very

         12  interested in knowing what your parameters are.

         13                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Our RFP process,

         14  one of the factors in I think every RFP is

         15  appropriateness of budget, that is there might be

         16  ten, 20, 30 points of the RFP, so that when you

         17  heard the higher figure --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: It is really

         19  shocking.

         20                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I mean, if a

         21  small agency in a lower density part of the City

         22  said we want $200,000 and we are going to serve 58

         23  seniors, that would not be looked on very kindly.

         24  They would not score very well.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Right.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: But if you had --

          3  I don't know if Warbasse Houses is in your district?

          4  You know, a huge development like that, you know,

          5  might be able to justify more serving thousands of

          6  seniors.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Right. Well,

          8  that is the question that concerns me. How the funds

          9  are going to be distributed? Is there a equal

         10  general figure set that everybody will receive? What

         11  are the modifications in the distribution of the

         12  funds? I would like to see for my --

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: We

         14  will certainly do that.

         15                 As you know, there is a listing of

         16  types of services that one can apply for and to

         17  groups within the floor and the ceiling will ask us

         18  for the amount of money that they think is

         19  appropriate to provide the services that they have

         20  chosen to provide.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: So you don't

         22  even really have any idea at this moment as to how

         23  many applicants you can certify, or you can accept?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         25  That is correct.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Not until we sort

          3  it out.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Because you

          5  haven't gotten them back. But when you get them back

          6  you will have to do a judging of their requests and

          7  the values of their requests.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: We

          9  thought it was the most flexible way to, you know,

         10  offer these kinds of services.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Okay, thank

         12  you.

         13                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: And we should

         14  stress, and Donna and her staff get, should get the

         15  credit for this, this RFP is much more flexible than

         16  the State NORC concept. And one of the Council

         17  Members in Brooklyn wanted to be sure some of the

         18  outlying community could even be served instead of,

         19  well, if you are in this development you can visit

         20  the NORC and you can live in a townhouse, a row

         21  house across the street, you can't come in.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Are you going

         23  to consider that as well?

         24                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We would consider

         25  that. Up to what, a quarter of a mile?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: A quarter of a

          3  mile.

          4                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: A quarter of a

          5  mile from within there.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: So you will

          7  give that consideration?

          8                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Okay.

         10                 Mike, I am sorry.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: That's okay.

         12                 What percentage of the funding will

         13  be used to expand the existing program?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: I

         15  think it is at 40 percent to offer to existing

         16  programs.

         17                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Up to, right?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: Up

         19  to 40 percent.

         20                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: So we retain a

         21  little flexibility in case we get some real high

         22  quality applications from the new side versus the

         23  existing ones not having great purposes for it, or

         24  vice versa, we might go right up to 40 with the old

         25  ones.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            61

          1  COMMITTEE ON AGING

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay, so the

          3  new program, okay. What percentage of it will be

          4  used, the funding dedicated to Housing Authority

          5  programs?

          6                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That also would

          7  depend on the quality of the applications coming in.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: The

          9  Housing Authority can't be an applicant in and of

         10  themselves, they would have to partner with the

         11  community-based agencies to provide the services.

         12                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: But that is like

         13  some of our senior centers. The Housing Authority is

         14  the home but a not-for-profit agency is the sponsor.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Working

         16  together that way.

         17                 Okay, thank you, Madam Chair.

         18                 Thank you, Commissioner.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Okay, I would

         20  like to welcome Council Member Tom White to the

         21  meeting, and call on Council Member Lasher.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: DFTA allocated

         23  a significant amount of funding for the three new

         24  social adult day care programs, yet has not provided

         25  any service target. Why not is really what we want
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          2  to know.

          3                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Once the awards

          4  are finalized, we will certainly negotiate the

          5  service targets from that. It is just because the

          6  RFP hasn't been -- that is the results haven't been

          7  certified yet by MOC.

          8                 When we get that we will be able to

          9  say, and we negotiate real benchmarks with all of

         10  these programs.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: There has also

         12  been a spending delay for FY '99 in the funds for

         13  social adult day care programs, and it has denied

         14  countless numbers of seniors from benefitting from

         15  this program for too long.

         16                 What will be done in the future to

         17  ensure that money allocated for the new programs by

         18  the Council is spent in a more reasonable amount of

         19  time to get it out there faster so that it has more

         20  of an impact at an earlier time period?

         21                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I just have not

         22  heard that criticism. We got the money in the middle

         23  of the year, and so we put it out for one-time costs

         24  in the Fiscal '99, and that happens with a lot of

         25  start-up programs, especially as the RFP process
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          2  takes some months. So now that they are in their

          3  cycle they can get their money for operating costs

          4  for the fiscal year, and already have. That is the

          5  one that is pending at MOC, sorry.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: So, let me ask

          7  with Council Member Lasher, the new programs, the

          8  adult, social adult day care centers, have they been

          9  identified? Have you decided on which they will be?

         10                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We don't have the

         11  final results yet from MOC and from our process, but

         12  we will be announcing them shortly.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Is that also in

         14  the same stage of development as the NORC program?

         15                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Well, the NORC is

         16  where the RFP -- they are approving our final

         17  language to be released.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Right. And the

         19  adult day care?

         20                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: The adult day

         21  care, the applications are in and we are in the

         22  final stages of reviewing that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Oh, of

         24  reviewing them, okay.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: About how long
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          2  do you think that will be before that is --

          3                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Three or four

          4  weeks.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: I can wait

          6  that long.

          7                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Do you have any

          9  idea where they will be located?

         10                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: There is a

         11  cognitive social adult day model and a frail model

         12  for each borough, except for Staten Island, which is

         13  only the cognitive model.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: So we will have

         15  nine?

         16                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Oh, that is

         18  wonderful.

         19                 Okay, and has any money been used to

         20  add to the incomes of existing adult day care

         21  centers that we have ongoing?

         22                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We did that with

         23  the '99 money, because we got it in mid-year, so

         24  that really was our only option, we could not get an

         25  RFP process going because we got during the budget
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          2  modification --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: So that went to

          4  the existing?

          5                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: And next year

          7  we will have another round of supporting the total

          8  number of social adult day care centers.

          9                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Well, there won't

         10  be a need for another RFP. These folks --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: No, no RFPs,

         12  but if we put money into the budget again for adult

         13  day care centers, all existing programs will

         14  benefit?

         15                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: No?

         17                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: For the '99 money

         18  we really had to go to existing programs and came up

         19  with a formula to do that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Yes.

         21                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Then we RFP'd the

         22  money here.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: For the next

         24  batch.

         25                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: So, some of those
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          2  may be existing programs, some will be completely

          3  new.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Okay.

          5  But even if they are entirely new they will by that

          6  time be existing programs?

          7                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That's right.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: I just

          9  would like to add, in this year's budget there was

         10  $2 million. At the end of last year there was $2

         11  million placed for nine social adult day care

         12  centers. Those are the ones that will be receiving

         13  notice of award very shortly.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Right.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: In

         16  addition, in Fiscal 2000, another 500,000 was placed

         17  into the budget, that will enable us to put out

         18  another RFP for two more centers to be opened. That

         19  will --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Five-hundred

         21  thousand for only two more?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: Well, they

         23  are around $200,000 a piece.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Are they

         25  really?
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Okay.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: And so

          5  that RFP should be going out, again, within about a

          6  month, in that range. We will have those reviewed

          7  during this fiscal year, and some time in the spring

          8  again we will have those two identified as well, and

          9  that is how that money will be spent.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: So, by the

         11  budget 2000, by the time we hit the budget 2000, how

         12  many do you think will be on line?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: By 2001?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: 2000, 2001.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: We are in

         16  2000 now, so by 2001 there should be 11 adult day

         17  care centers that are funded primarily by the

         18  Department for the Aging.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: And the number

         20  now is?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: At this

         22  point there were none that received their primary

         23  funding. They receive certain funds from us, but not

         24  to the extent of these 190,000 or 200,000 dollar

         25  grants that are annual grants and for six-year
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          2  contracts, the way our normal process runs.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Council Member

          4  White has something.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Yes, good

          6  morning.

          7                 I just wanted to, on the $2 million

          8  the Council put in, and the $500,000 we put in, now

          9  the $2 million was for FY '99?

         10                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We had it

         11  prorated because we got it in the middle of the

         12  year. So, I believe we got 1 million of that in '99?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: So, it hasn't

         15  been awarded yet, right?

         16                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: For 2000, no, not

         17  yet.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: But you

         19  got a million dollars left over?

         20                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We hope to get

         21  full funding to those programs. The million dollars

         22  from '99 went to existing adult day programs.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: But there was 2

         24  million.

         25                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: But we didn't get
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          2  the 2 million because we got the money only in

          3  January. So I guess the deal with the Council and

          4  the Executive Branch was to prorate it and give us 1

          5  million.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Remember when

          7  the Mayor put a freeze on all funding going out?

          8  Well, at the end of six months he lifted the freeze,

          9  so we lost six months' worth of funding; isn't that

         10  correct, basically?

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Until that

         12  agreement took place, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Well, see, now,

         15  the only reason I am asking that question is because

         16  I don't know when we are going to catch up. So that

         17  when we do sit down and we are negotiating the

         18  budget --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: We are going to

         20  have to start from scratch.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: That the figure

         22  we are using is a realistic figure on something that

         23  we are supporting that is in place, as opposed to

         24  what is projected that takes six months to initiate.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Or is held up
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          2  for six months.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Or is held up

          4  for six months.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: I am

          6  sorry, the $2.5 million, which is now the figure has

          7  been baselined in the Department for the Aging's

          8  budget, so that money will be there in the coming

          9  years, and that will be primarily for the funding of

         10  11 adult day care centers.

         11                 So that is in the baseline, it is not

         12  something that has to come up every year.

         13                 Any increases that you might want to

         14  put would have to come up.

         15                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: If I can just

         16  add, those 11 contractors should be getting their

         17  full compliment of funds that the Committee, that

         18  the City has allocated, and that will enable them,

         19  because they are not getting going on July 1st to

         20  purchase some things for start-up cost, but then

         21  also they should be able to start serving real

         22  clients this fiscal year and before too long.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: I have a

         24  problem in my district here and I might as well

         25  bring it up while I have the opportunity, there was
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          2  one senior center at Brooks Memorial. I allocated a

          3  van for them, a bus, to take the seniors wherever

          4  they needed to go. And they didn't get the money to

          5  pay the insurance. So it was like you wouldn't put

          6  in the budget the money to pay for the ongoing

          7  maintenance of the vehicle.

          8                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes, I guess we

          9  would need an allocation from somewhere to pay for

         10  the ongoing maintenance.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: I think that

         12  would save you money, and I think that your

         13  investment in terms of, if I get a vehicle for

         14  $65,000, and the insurance is $2,500 or the

         15  maintenance is $2,500 a year, how can I build that

         16  in? How can you build that in?

         17                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We would need

         18  some additional funds for those kind of ongoing

         19  expenses. The thing that is always the most

         20  troubling for us are the ongoing annualized

         21  expenses. Usually because of one program or another

         22  not being at full speed we have some money for

         23  one-shot expenses, whether it is computers or

         24  something like that, or an air conditioner for a

         25  program, but the ongoing expenses are the killers
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          2  for us.

          3                 Linda, did you want to add something?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Linda, help me.

          5  How can I do it? How can we do it?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WHITTAKER: One

          7  of the problems that we continually face is when

          8  programs are allocated, vehicles and stuff, the

          9  budget doesn't allow us to stretch that far because

         10  the money is already allocated.

         11                 When you are starting a vehicle at a

         12  site that may never have had transportation before,

         13  it runs anywhere, you have to consider the driver,

         14  the insurance, and all of that, and it runs about

         15  $30,000 to $40,000 a year.

         16                 So, when you put a van in its place

         17  and there is no way to maintain it, the Department

         18  doesn't have that money to help supplement it.

         19                 We have asked people when they do

         20  this to take into consideration what the community

         21  is doing, what is it that the group can do also, but

         22  the Department doesn't have that extra money. We

         23  always inform people that when you put the vans

         24  there, you have to consider maintenance, how is the

         25  maintenance going to be maintained?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Here is my

          3  dilemma now on that area, if you will allow me,

          4  Chair?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: If we are

          7  dealing with Meals On Wheels, delivering meals to

          8  people who cannot come to a center, and we provide a

          9  vehicle for that, all right? There should be a

         10  mechanism to allow for an expense. If the Council,

         11  meaning me, in my district, have supplied a vehicle

         12  for Meals On Wheels, I can't supply the insurance

         13  and maintenance money as well, and we are providing

         14  a service, so I am trying to figure out how we can

         15  do this jointly.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WHITTAKER:

         17  Well, we will have to look and see. Usually we don't

         18  have the extra money to put there.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: So how is Meals

         20  On Wheels supposed to work?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER RABIN: I would

         22  like to add that the Council has been successful in

         23  budget negotiations with OMB in getting money for

         24  such things as insurance or maintenance added to our

         25  budget, so that is something that I know the
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          2  Speaker's Office from time to time answers questions

          3  about. It might be something that you would want to

          4  direct to the Speaker's office as well, because I

          5  know that those negotiations have sometimes borne

          6  fruit in getting those additional funds.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay, now, what

          8  category would that be in, in terms of --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON:  Expense and

         10  capital both.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: The vehicle is

         12  capital.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: And the labor

         14  is expense.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: It is expense,

         16  so earmark it expense, right? Okay, thank you.

         17                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Going from

         18  Linda's math, if my mental math is right, I am

         19  trying to help my daughter, I don't know if I did,

         20  but if there was just one van added per Council

         21  district, based on the cost Linda just gave, it

         22  would be one and a half to two-million dollars in

         23  expense that would result from that Citywide.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: The Citywide

         25  cost. Well, it is worth checking out.
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          2                 And in that same vein, as I recall,

          3  the budget we passed last year included something

          4  approximating $500,000 for an item designed to

          5  afford seniors cultural access, access to cultural

          6  events; have you folks done anything with that? Have

          7  you given that any thought?

          8                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We have given it

          9  some thought and we met with Commissioner Chapin and

         10  his staff in the last five weeks, because of

         11  scheduling we couldn't meet with him until late in

         12  the summer. And we are talking about, and this is

         13  still not finalized, perhaps a senior cultural

         14  discount card of some kind that would, instead of

         15  the suggested donation of say $10 or whatever that

         16  you see when you enter a museum or a cultural

         17  institution, you could drop that to, for argument's

         18  sake, two or three dollars, and we would have to --

         19  well, if we can that would be great but we also have

         20  another partner at the other end of the table. A

         21  museum may be nervous about some wave of people

         22  coming in too, so --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: You would think

         24  they should welcome people coming in.

         25                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Sure. We will
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          2  negotiate that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: And when you do

          4  that, don't forget to include the Flushing Town

          5  Council, Flushing Town Hall, Elegant Museum and

          6  Center of Art and Culture in Flushing.

          7                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I have been

          8  there.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Now functional.

         10                 Were you upstairs?

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I saw the

         12  renovations underway.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Well, you must

         14  go and feast your eyes. I just had a town hall

         15  meeting in the upstairs town center, and it was

         16  absolutely elegant, absolutely elegant. I felt as

         17  though I were in a movie theater. It was beautiful

         18  and we had a successful meeting.

         19                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Next to the RK

         20  O'Keef's, right?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: You should live

         22  so long.

         23                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Well, the

         24  institutions that would be the most natural are the

         25  City-owned --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Well, this is,

          3  so it would qualify.

          4                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I am being

          6  partisan, but I am being objective.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Oh, I didn't

          8  know that you were being partisan, like you were

          9  being borough.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Both.

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: So that is our

         12  thinking at this point, but we don't have it

         13  finalized yet and we still are discussing things

         14  with cultural affairs.

         15                 So, if anyone else has an idea that

         16  they want to suggest to us, we are all ears as well.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I have a series

         18  of questions that I am not familiar with but I am

         19  going to ask them, so if you would please cooperate.

         20                 We are talking now about E.mail, and

         21  the report that we had issued a while back, about

         22  It's In The Mail, a customer service evaluation of

         23  City agencies' responsiveness to public inquiry and

         24  complaints, and the questions relate to the

         25  processing and responding to public mail, including
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          2  E.mail.

          3                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: So the

          5  questions are, are you familiar with a Citywide

          6  protocol for E.mail, routing, tracking and response

          7  time?

          8                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I am and I get

          9  the mail myself, I look at it myself before I route

         10  it often to some of the folks behind me for

         11  response.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Okay.

         13                 Let me see another one here.

         14                 Do you have a copy of the protocol, a

         15  written copy of the protocol by which you operate?

         16                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: When we get them

         17  from City Hall, I guess someone who has written the

         18  Mayor, and often times they don't even relate to our

         19  Department, but because it is a vaguely

         20  aging-related issue it comes to us, and I think each

         21  E.mail, the Mayor's own protocol is listed there

         22  that you are expected to respond within ten days,

         23  please let us know how you resolve this.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: All right.

         25                 Now, the other question is, do you
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          2  ask for a mailing address of individuals who

          3  correspond by E.mail? I don't understand the

          4  question.

          5                 Oh, sometimes agencies do ask for

          6  addresses from E.mail corresponders.

          7                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I would say not

          8  automatically. If somebody lists, actually gave a

          9  suggestion to us only by E.mail and the individual

         10  only wants to correspond that way, that's fine.

         11                 I think the way the format is on the

         12  City website, and I am assuming this because of the

         13  way it comes to me, it is listed name, address,

         14  phone number, E.mail address.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Right.

         16                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: So somebody would

         17  just have to not fill out part of that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: And what

         19  percentage of inquiries and/or complaints are

         20  handled via E.mail, as opposed to telephone or mail;

         21  do you have any statistics on that? The use of the

         22  E.mail?

         23                 Is there a great use of E.mail coming

         24  in to you from senior citizens or from agencies

         25  working with you?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I get something I

          3  would say on average every day, but only one, two,

          4  three --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Domino number?

          6                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: And you have

          8  your E.mail address on your stationery, or whatever

          9  material you send on so it is available?

         10                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes. Especially

         11  as it is reprinted, everybody's business card,

         12  everybody's stationery. But we didn't throw out old

         13  stationery or cards.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Okay.

         15                 Are there any other questions that my

         16  colleagues may want to ask? Comments? No.

         17                 I would like to thank you.

         18                 Do we have somebody else?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Yes, Council

         21  Member Lasher.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: I would like

         23  to go back to the integration of the NORCs with

         24  funding that they are receiving and how that has

         25  been put together. It seems that they sort of have
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          2  the NORCs out there in one respect, and the other

          3  service area in another, and the two are not getting

          4  to meet each other head-on to make sure that all of

          5  the monies that need to go to NORC gets there. And I

          6  think that NORC has proved itself to be one of the

          7  best types of programs in saving a lot of money for

          8  the City, and yet the NORC itself is not and hasn't

          9  gotten really all of the objectives that are

         10  necessary to make it go. And if you can fill us in

         11  on that and where we are going on that and hopefully

         12  in the future to continue it and help expand it

         13  because it comes out to be one of the most cost

         14  effective programs that we have, and if you can

         15  comment on that.

         16                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: And when you

         17  mention the areas that aren't being served, you mean

         18  like geographically somebody across the street from

         19  Warbasse Houses, or you mean other NORCs in the

         20  City?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Basically it

         22  is other NORCs in the City that I am concerned

         23  about.

         24                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Well, we hope

         25  this RFP will address some of that and we know we
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          2  have some applications from new parts of the City

          3  that haven't been covered yet.

          4                 But I think had we shut out the

          5  existing programs, we would have been criticized.

          6                 I think we sort of have come up with

          7  a pretty practical plan, you know, up to 40 percent

          8  will go to the existing programs if they can

          9  demonstrate the need for these funds and how well

         10  they will use them and 60 percent or more for the

         11  new programs. I think that is a good balance. And,

         12  again, ours is more flexible than the state's is.

         13                 We will have the numbers, based on

         14  who comes in and what we negotiate an what we can

         15  then give, some sort of aggregate amount of service

         16  of units of service contacts, you know, wellness

         17  programs, medical contacts. You know, there are

         18  nursing type contacts, social service contacts,

         19  after we negotiate the final contracts, we hope and

         20  think in the best interest of the city, we always

         21  try to get a little bit more in service in our

         22  negotiation. So, that is why we don't have numbers

         23  yet for the whole City.

         24                 And we can also hope that some of the

         25  applicants, by putting their best forward to try to
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          2  win the contract, they are coming up with maximum

          3  levels of service. So that we could put out a

          4  certain goal, I, frankly, hope we exceed that, so we

          5  can put out a goal now but it might be kind of

          6  self-serving until we get these contracts in and

          7  have real practical numbers.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Okay, because

          9  it is really very important. As fast as it could be

         10  implemented would be savings of tremendous amounts

         11  of money and providing services for a tremendous

         12  amount of senior citizens who are now living in, as

         13  time goes on.

         14                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It is very

         15  important to us, and it is just that we all do live

         16  with the RFP process and that is not a criticism of

         17  anyone, it is just by nature a slower process to

         18  make sure we have checks on us, which is fine, and

         19  responsible from MOC. And also thanks in part to

         20  you, in large part to you folks, se have a very busy

         21  contracting year because of the new senior centers,

         22  the NORCs, the social adult day, so that shop in our

         23  agency is really humming.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: And, therefore,
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          2  if you have a lot of work and everything is humming

          3  and you are running behind time because you got too

          4  much work, let us know so we can hire more workers.

          5  We have no aversion to it.

          6                 Why I wanted to check, going

          7  backwards again, you had made reference to the

          8  contract or the arrangement you had with two

          9  universities for doing this survey of existing

         10  centers, right? Do you have any time schedule --

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It's more of a

         12  study.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: All right,

         14  study, but how broadly based will their study be?

         15  You know, what percentage of your existing contracts

         16  will they be examining or studying or taking notes

         17  on?

         18                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I am sure they

         19  will go to every borough, and I am sure they will go

         20  to some areas that have been underserving, but I

         21  don't know if any of my colleagues have heard of a

         22  specific percentage. Maybe.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: And do you have

         24  a time frame? Is there a time frame within which

         25  they are working?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WHITTAKER: I

          3  don't know the specifics, but there have been talks

          4  about that.

          5                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I would like to

          7  know what their time frame might be and where they

          8  might be going, if you will?

          9                 And then one question else. You had

         10  made reference to the fact that you had had a

         11  start-up grant of $28,000 provided by the State

         12  Office for the Aging, to help retrain workers who

         13  are seniors so that they might re-enter the work

         14  force; what age do you accept as representing a

         15  senior?

         16                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Well, there is a

         17  number of different ages here.

         18                 The Older American's Act definition

         19  is 60. But for re-training programs, believe it or

         20  not, it is 55. Most people don't consider themselves

         21  older workers at 55. But it has dropped down to take

         22  more advantage of somebody's potential career.

         23                 Aside from the data we mentioned in

         24  this small program, we are very proud of our

         25  employment programs. We get what are called federal
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          2  Title V programs, unsubsidized workers who sometimes

          3  work in non-for-profit agencies, even we have a few

          4  placed in our own department, some work across the

          5  way here at 40 plus, and most parts of the country

          6  when a county gets those workers, that is all they

          7  do with the funds and with the staff they get from

          8  that.

          9                 We have run some partnerships with

         10  some private sector companies, I have mentioned this

         11  in the past, I hope you don't mind me touting them

         12  again --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Not at all.

         14                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: With the Reese

         15  Organization, to help seniors get into the food

         16  industry, restaurant industry; one with Food

         17  Emporium, to get into retail food; and older one

         18  with IBM to train people in computers, and then a

         19  new one off-site with the Gap. The Gap likes older

         20  workers, and I would guess, would venture, at the

         21  risk of being --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: More

         23  responsible, they don't take time off.

         24                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I would risk

         25  older women in particular in a place like Baby Gap.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Yes.

          3                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: But in walking

          4  distance over at Church and Worth we have this

          5  training center, and you are all welcome to tour it.

          6  If you go to the Reese Center, except that it is in

          7  City-rented space it looks like a fastfood

          8  restaurant. And you can see --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Fastfood, are

         10  they a healthy service? Do you want to have aging

         11  people working in a fastfood outfit?

         12                 COMMISISONER STUPP: Well, they could

         13  use their skills and work for, I don't know,

         14  something a little healthier. But some of the folks

         15  go from there and work, if you go to the top of the

         16  world trade center now, in the gift shop and other

         17  retail outlets up there, if somebody has some gray

         18  in their hair it is likely they came from our

         19  training program.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Can they work

         21  without gray in their hair?

         22                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: But the age is

         24  generally 55, that is the floor?

         25                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That is the
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          2  floor.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: That makes the

          4  senior?

          5                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: The average is in

          6  the sixties somewhere of the people who are being

          7  trained there.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Very good.

          9                 Well, I want to thank you,

         10  Commissioner, and staff --

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON:-- For your

         13  usual informational information.

         14                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Okay. We will get

         15  back to you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Thank you very

         17  much. And we look forward to working with you on a

         18  very positive upgrade scale.

         19                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: You are

         21  welcome.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 11:20 a.m.)

         24

         25
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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